§89.1005

find necessary for the purpose of ex-
port, research, investigations, studies,
demonstrations, or training, or for rea-
sons of national security.

(c) Importation provision. (1) A new
nonroad engine, vehicle, or equipment
offered for importation or imported by
a person in violation of §89.1003 is to be
refused admission into the TUnited
States, but the Secretary of the Treas-
ury and the Administrator may, by
joint regulation, provide for deferring a
final determination as to admission
and authorizing the delivery of such a
nonroad engine offered for import to
the owner or consignee thereof upon
such terms and conditions (including
the furnishing of a bond) as may appear
to them appropriate to insure that the
nonroad engine will be brought into
conformity with the standards, re-
quirements, and limitations applicable
to it under this part.

(2) If a nonroad engine is finally re-
fused admission under this paragraph,
the Secretary of the Treasury shall
cause disposition thereof in accordance
with the customs laws unless it is ex-
ported, under regulations prescribed by
the Secretary, within 90 days of the
date of notice of the refusal or addi-
tional time as may be permitted pursu-
ant to the regulations.

(3) Disposition in accordance with
the customs laws may not be made in
such manner as may result, directly or
indirectly, in the sale, to the ultimate
consumer, of a new nonroad engine
that fails to comply with applicable
standards of the Administrator under
this part.

(d) Ezport provision. A new nonroad
engine intended solely for export, and
so labeled or tagged on the outside of
the container and on the engine itself,
shall be subject to the provisions of
§89.1003, except that if the country that
is to receive the engine has emission
standards that differ from the stand-
ards prescribed under subpart B of this
part, then the engine must comply
with the standards of the country that
is to receive the engine.

§89.1005 Injunction proceedings for
prohibited acts.
(a) The district courts of the United
States have jurisdiction to restrain
violations of §89.1003(a).
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(b) Actions to restrain violations of
§89.1003(a) must be brought by and in
the name of the United States. In an
action, subpoenas for witnesses who
are required to attend a district court
in any district may run into any other
district.

§89.1006 Penalties.

(a) Violations. A violation of the re-
quirements of this subpart is a viola-
tion of the applicable provisions of the
Act, including sections 213(d) and 203,
and is subject to the penalty provisions
thereunder.

(1) A person who violates
§89.1003(a)(1), (a)(4), or (a)(6), or a man-
ufacturer or dealer who violates
§89.1003(a)(3)(i), is subject to a civil
penalty of not more than $32,500 for
each violation.

(2) A person other than a manufac-
turer or dealer who violates
§89.1003(a)(3)(i) or any person who vio-
lates §89.1003(a)(3)(ii) is subject to a
civil penalty of not more than $2,750 for
each violation.

(3) A violation with respect to
§89.1003 (a)(1), (a)(3)(1), (a)(4), or (a)(6)
constitutes a separate offense with re-
spect to each nonroad engine.

(4) A violation with respect to
§89.1003(a)(3)(ii) constitutes a separate
offense with respect to each part or
component. Each day of a violation

with respect to §89.1003(a)(b) con-
stitutes a separate offense.
(5) A person who violates

§89.1003(a)(2) or (a)(5) is subject to a
civil penalty of not more than $32,500
per day of violation.

(6) The maximum penalty values list-
ed in this section are shown for cal-
endar year 2004. Maximum penalty lim-
its for later years may be adjusted
based on the Consumer Price Index.
The specific regulatory provisions for
changing the maximum penalties, pub-
lished in 40 CFR part 19, reference the
applicable U.S. Code citation on which
the prohibited action is based.

(b) Civil actions. The Administrator
may commence a civil action to assess
and recover any civil penalty under
paragraph (a) of this section.

(1) An action under this paragraph
may be brought in the district court of
the United States for the district in
which the defendant resides or has the
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